

Mayor: Cr G Bagnall

Councillors: P Youngblutt (Deputy Mayor)

M Armstrong C Byrne B Longland K Milne W Polglase

Minutes

Ordinary Council Meeting Thursday 4 June 2015

held at **Kingscliff Bowls Club Waves Function Room, Marine Parade, Kingscliff**commencing at 5.00pm

COUNCIL'S CHARTER

Tweed Shire Council's charter comprises a set of principles that are to guide Council in the carrying out of its functions, in accordance with Section 8 of the Local Government Act, 1993.

Tweed Shire Council has the following charter:

- to provide directly or on behalf of other levels of government, after due consultation, adequate, equitable and appropriate services and facilities for the community and to ensure that those services and facilities are managed efficiently and effectively;
- to exercise community leadership;
- to exercise its functions in a manner that is consistent with and actively promotes the principles of multiculturalism;
- to promote and to provide and plan for the needs of children;
- to properly manage, develop, protect, restore, enhance and conserve the environment of the area for which it is responsible, in a manner that is consistent with and promotes the principles of ecologically sustainable development;
- to have regard to the long term and cumulative effects of its decisions;
- to bear in mind that it is the custodian and trustee of public assets and to effectively account for and manage the assets for which it is responsible;
- to facilitate the involvement of councillors, members of the public, users of facilities and services and council staff in the development, improvement and co-ordination of local government;
- to raise funds for local purposes by the fair imposition of rates, charges and fees, by income earned from investments and, when appropriate, by borrowings and grants;
- to keep the local community and the State government (and through it, the wider community) informed about its activities;
- to ensure that, in the exercise of its regulatory functions, it acts consistently and without bias, particularly where an activity of the council is affected;
- to be a responsible employer.

The Meeting commenced at 5.30pm.

IN ATTENDANCE

Cr G Bagnall (Mayor), Cr P Youngblutt (Deputy Mayor), Cr C Byrne, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, and Cr W Polglase.

Also present were Mr Troy Green (General Manager), Ms Liz Collyer (Director Corporate Services), Mr David Oxenham (Director Engineering), Mr Vince Connell (Director Planning and Regulation), Ms Tracey Stinson (Director Community and Natural Resources), Mr Shane Davidson (Executive Officer), Mr Neil Baldwin (Manager Corporate Governance) and Miss Janet Twohill (Minutes Secretary).

APOLOGIES

Attendee **Cr M Armstrong** has informed the General Manager that his absence is caused by personal circumstances

303

Cr K Milne Cr G Bagnall

RESOLVED that the apology of **Cr M Armstrong** be accepted and the necessary leave of absence be granted.

FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr G Bagnall AGAINST VOTE - Cr C Byrne, Cr W Polglase, Cr P Youngblutt ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr M Armstrong

The Motion was **Carried** on the Casting Vote of the Mayor.

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

Nil.

CONFIRMATION OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES

1 [CONMIN] Adoption of the Recommendations of the Planning Committee Meeting held Thursday 4 June 2015

304

Cr C Byrne Cr P Youngblutt **RESOLVED** that the recommendations of the Ordinary Planning Committee Meeting held Thursday 4 June 2015 be adopted.

1 [PR-PC] Development Application DA15/0102 for Multi-Dwelling Housing Comprising Three Units and a Pool at Lot 5 DP 9173 No. 24 Thomson Street, Tweed Heads

RECOMMENDED that:

- A. Clause 4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards objection to Clause 6.6 of Tweed Local Environmental Plan 2014 regarding the minimum building street frontage be supported and the concurrence of the Director-General of the Department of Planning be assumed.
- B. Development Application DA15/0102 for multi-dwelling housing comprising three units and a pool at Lot 5 DP 9173 No. 24 Thomson Street, Tweed Heads be approved subject to the following conditions:

GENERAL

 The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plans as listed in the table below, except where varied by the conditions of this consent:

Drawing	Prepared by	Dated
Site Plan - Basement	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
(Sheet 36 of 96) Revision	Building Designs	
J		
Site Plan - Ground Floor	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
(Sheet 37 of 96) Revision	Building Designs	
J		
Site Plan - First Floor	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
(Sheet 38 of 96) Revision	Building Designs	
J		
Site Plan - Second Floor	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
(Sheet 39 of 96) Revision	Building Designs	
J		
Basement and Ground	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
Floor Plans (Sheet 43 of	Building Designs	
96) Revision J		
First and Second Floor	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
Plans (Sheet 44 of 96)	Building Designs	
Revision J		
Elevations (Sheet 45 of	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
96) Revision J	Building Designs	
Section A (Sheet 47 of	Stuart Osman	10/04/15
96) Revision J	Building Designs	
	·	[GEN0005]

[GEN0005]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

3. Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary approved modifications to any existing public utilities situated within or adjacent to the subject property.

It is noted that the existing power pole along the developments frontage will be required to be relocated to accommodate the new access.

[GEN0135]

- 4. The development is to be carried out in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.
- 5. This development consent does not include demolition of the existing structures on the subject site. A separate approval will need to be obtained for this purpose, as statutorily required.

[GEN0305]

6. Prior to the commencement of construction of the new structure or use of the site a 'clearance inspection' shall be conducted for the site and a 'clearance certificate' issued by a licensed asbestos assessor or competent person which states that the site 'does not pose a risk to health and safety from exposure to asbestos' in accordance with Clause 474 of the Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011. A copy of this certificate shall be forwarded to the Principal Certifying Authority and Council within 7 days of completion of the 'clearance inspection'.

GEN03501

7. To ensure that the building and any associated structures are correctly positioned on the site, a report prepared by a registered surveyor is to be submitted to the principal certifying authority at footing stage and at the completion of the building indicating that the building, retaining walls and the like have been correctly positioned and at the correct height on the site, noting that all boundary setback measurements are taken from the real property boundary and not from such things as road bitumen or fence lines.

[GENNS01]

8. Vehicles from the basement car park shall enter and exit the development in a forward direction.

[GENNS02]

 Erosion and Sediment Control shall be designed, installed and maintained in accordance with Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality and its Annexure A - "Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".

[GENNS02]

- 10. A Tweed Byron Local Aboriginal Land Council Cultural Sites Officer shall be engaged and on site to monitor works when any removal of vegetation and soil disturbance is carried out.
- 11. If Aboriginal cultural material is uncovered during earth working activities, the following measures shall be undertaken:
 - Works will cease immediately;
 - A temporary exclusion zone established;
 - Tweed Byron Local Aboriginal Land Council will be advised;
 - Office of Environment and Heritage will be contacted;
 - An appropriate qualified cultural heritage professional will be contacted.

[GENNS04]

- 12. Should skeletal material be exposed during ground disturbance, work within the project area must cease immediately and contact made with the following, as per OEH requirements:
 - NSW Police
 - National Parks and Wildlife
 - Tweed Byron Local Aboriginal Land Council
- 13. It is a requirement of the legislation that if cultural materials are uncovered as a result of development within the project area, they are to be registered as Aboriginal sites with OEH on the AHIMS database within the required timeframe.
- 14. It is recommended that consultation with Tweed Byron Local Aboriginal Land Council be ongoing for the life of the works proposed for this site.

[GENNS04]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

15. Prior to issue of Construction Certificate the applicant is to submit to Council's General Manager or his delegate a list of the finished building materials and colours (including colour product photo images) for approval.

[PCC0175]

16. A detailed plan of landscaping containing no noxious or environmental weed species and with a minimum 80% of total plant numbers comprised of local native species is to be submitted and approved by Council's General Manager or his delegate prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

[PCC0585]

17. Application shall be made to Tweed Shire Council under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 for works pursuant to this consent located within the road reserve, including (but not limited to) the construction of a new access in accordance with Section A2 - "Site Access and Parking Code" of Council's consolidated Tweed Development Control Plan and Council's "Driveway Access to Property - Part 1" Design Specification June 2004.

Applications shall include engineering plans and specifications undertaken in accordance with Council's Development Design and Construction Specifications, including (as applicable):

- Road works/furnishings
- Stormwater drainage
- Water and sewerage works
- Sediment and erosion control plans
- Location of all services/conduits
- Traffic Control Plan (as applicable)

[PCC0895]

18. The footings and floor slab are to be designed by a practising Structural Engineer after consideration of a soil report from a NATA accredited soil testing laboratory and shall be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

[PCC0945]

19. Council will not permit ground anchors (to retain sacrificial sheet piling for basement excavations) within Council or neighbouring private property or within 200mm of the subject site's property boundary, without prior consent from Council or the applicable neighbouring property owner being obtained. If the land is owned by Council, approval is required from the General Manager or his delegate.

Additionally, the applicant or owner must enter into a contract regarding liability for the ground anchors and lodges an application under Section 138 of the Roads Act together with an application fee of \$10,000 and a bond of \$25,000 for each road frontage. This bond will be refunded upon the removal of the ground anchors. If the ground anchors are not removed prior to the occupation/use of the development, the bond shall be forfeited to Council.

[PCC0955]

- 20. A Construction Certificate application for building works that involve any of the following:
 - connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain
 - installation of stormwater quality control devices
 - erosion and sediment control works

will not be approved until prior separate approval to do so has been granted by Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act.

a) Applications for these works must be submitted on Council's standard Section 68 stormwater drainage application form accompanied by the required attachments and the prescribed fee.

[PCC1145]

21. The peak stormwater flow rate that may be discharged from the site to the public realm, in events of intensity up to the ARI 100 year design storm, shall be limited to the pre-development flow rates utilising water sensitive urban design measures in accordance with Water Sensitive Urban Design Technical Design Guidelines for South East Queensland (Healthy Waterways) and/or on site stormwater detention (OSD) utilising above and or below ground storage. OSD devices including discharge control pits (DCP) are to comply with standards in the current version of The Upper Parramatta River Catchment Trust "On-Site Stormwater Detention Handbook" except that (PSD) Permissible Site Discharge and Site Storage Requirements (SSR) in the handbook do not apply to Tweed Shire.

All stormwater must initially be directed to the DCP. Details are to be submitted with the S68 stormwater application.

Any proposed roof level stormwater storage system must be limited to a maximum ponding depth of 60mm for the ARI 100 year storm event and must provide a failsafe overflow, to ensure stormwater will not overflow back into the building or neighbouring properties during larger rainfall events or if blockage of the system occurs.

[PCC1165]

22. An application shall be lodged together with any prescribed fees including inspection fees and approved by Tweed Shire Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act for any water, sewerage, on site sewerage management system or drainage works including connection of a private stormwater

drain to a public stormwater drain, installation of stormwater quality control devices or erosion and sediment control works, prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

[PCC1195]

23. Where any existing sewer junctions are to be disused on the site, the connection point shall be capped off by Council staff. Applications shall be made to Tweed Shire Council and include the payment of fees in accordance with Councils adopted fees and charges.

[PCC1235]

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

24. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing sewer main, stormwater line or other underground infrastructure within or adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

25. An application is to be made to Council to disconnect the existing building from Council's sewerage system, prior to any demolition work commencing.

[PCW0045]

- 26. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
 - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
 - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
 - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
 - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and
 - (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage

inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and

- (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
 - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

27. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 28. Residential building work:
 - (a) Residential building work within the meaning of the <u>Home Building Act 1989</u> must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the following information:
 - (i) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - * in the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
 - * the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act,
 - (ii) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - * the name of the owner-builder, and
 - * if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.
 - (b) If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under subclause (1) becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the updated information.

[PCW0235]

- 29. A temporary builder's toilet is to be provided prior to commencement of work at the rate of one closet for every 15 persons or part of 15 persons employed at the site. Each toilet provided must be:
 - (a) a standard flushing toilet connected to a public sewer, or
 - (b) if that is not practicable, an accredited sewage management facility approved by the council

[PCW0245]

- 30. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

31. Please note that while the proposal, subject to the conditions of approval, may comply with the provisions of the Building Code of Australia for persons with disabilities your attention is drawn to the Disability Discrimination Act which may contain requirements in excess of those under the Building Code of Australia. It is therefore recommended that these provisions be investigated prior to start of works to determine the necessity for them to be incorporated within the design.

[PCW0665]

- 32. It is a condition of this approval that, if an excavation extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land or is likely to effect the integrity of the adjoining land, the person causing the excavation to be made must comply with the following:
 - (a) The person must, at the person's own expense:
 - (i) preserve and protect the building/property from damage; and
 - (ii) if necessary, underpin and support the building in an approved manner.

(b) The person must, at least 7 days before excavating below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, give notice of intention to do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and furnish particulars to the owner of the proposed work.

[PCW0765]

33. Prior to commencement of work on the site, all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area, where required. These measures are to be in accordance with the approved Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan and adequately maintained throughout the duration of the development.

In addition to these measures the core flute sign provided with the stormwater approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act is to be clearly displayed on the most prominent position of the sediment fence or erosion control device which promotes awareness of the importance of the erosion and sediment controls provided.

This sign is to remain in position for the duration of the project.
[PCW0985]

34. An application to connect to Council's sewer or carry out plumbing and drainage works, together with any prescribed fees including inspection fees, is to be submitted to and approved by Council prior to the commencement of any building works on the site.

[PCW1065]

35. Notwithstanding the issue of this development consent, separate consent from Council under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993, must be obtained prior to any works taking place on a public road including the construction of a new driveway access (or modification of access). Applications for consent under Section 138 must be submitted on Council's standard application form and be accompanied by the required attachments and prescribed fee.

[PCW1170]

DURING CONSTRUCTION

36. All proposed works are to be carried out in accordance with the conditions of development consent, approved Management Plans, approved Construction Certificate, drawings and specifications.

[DUR0005]

37. Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council:

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

- 38. All reasonable steps shall be taken to muffle and acoustically baffle all plant and equipment. In the event of complaints from the neighbours, which Council deem to be reasonable, the noise from the construction site is not to exceed the following:
 - A. Short Term Period 4 weeks.

residence.

 $L_{\text{Aeq, 15 min}}$ noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 20dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest likely affected residence.

B. Long term period - the duration. L_{Aeq, 15 min} noise level measured over a period of not less than 15 minutes when the construction site is in operation, must not exceed the background level by more than 15dB(A) at the boundary of the nearest affected

[DUR0215]

39. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

- 40. Provision shall be made for the collection of builder's solid waste in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) A temporary builder's waste chute is to be erected to vertically convey builder's debris to a bulk container.
 - (b) The chute shall be located in a position approved by the Principal Certifying Authority.
 - (c) A canopy shall be provided to the chute outlet and container to reduce the spillage of materials and nuisance caused by dust.

[DUR0385]

41. Building materials used in the construction of the building are not to be deposited or stored on Council's footpath or road reserve, unless prior approval is obtained from Council.

[DUR0395]

42. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

43. It is the responsibility of the applicant to restrict public access to the construction works site, construction works or materials or equipment on the site when construction work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements and Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011.

[DUR0415]

44. Excavation

- (a) All excavations and backfilling associated with the erection or demolition of a building must be executed safely and in accordance with WorkCover 2000 Regulations.
- (b) All excavations associated with the erection or demolition of a building must be properly guarded and protected to prevent them from being dangerous to life or property.

[DUR0425]

- 45. If the work involved in the erection or demolition of a building:
 - (a) is likely to cause pedestrian or vehicular traffic in a public place to be obstructed or rendered inconvenient; or
 - (b) building involves the enclosure of a public place,

a hoarding or fence must be erected between the work site and the public place in accordance with the WorkCover Authority of NSW Code of Practice and relevant Australian Standards.

Where necessary the provision for lighting in accordance with AS 1158 - Road lighting and provision for vehicular and pedestrian traffic in accordance with AS 1742 shall be provided.

Any such hoarding, fence or awning is to be removed prior to the issue of an occupation certificate/subdivision certificate.

Application shall be made to Tweed Shire Council including associated fees for approval prior to any structure being erected within Councils road reserve.

[DUR0435]

46. The use of vibratory compaction equipment (other than hand held devices) within 100m of any dwelling house, building or structure is strictly prohibited.

[DUR0815]

47. The development is to be carried out in accordance with the current BASIX certificate and schedule of commitments approved in relation to this development consent.

[DUR0905]

48. No soil, sand, gravel, clay or other material shall be disposed of off the site without the prior written approval of Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0985]

49. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense and any such costs are payable prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate.

[DUR0995]

- 50. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from:
 - Noise, water or air pollution.
 - Dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles.
 - Material removed from the site by wind.

[DUR1005]

51. Access to the building for people with disabilities shall be provided and constructed in accordance with the requirements of Section D of the Building Code of Australia. Particular attention is to be given to the deemed-to-satisfy provisions of Part D-3 and their requirement to comply with AS1428.

[DUR1685]

52. Where a building or part of a building is required, under the provisions of Section D of the Building Code of Australia, to be accessible to permit use by people with disabilities, prominently displayed signs and symbols shall be provided to identify accessible routes, areas and facilities. The signage, including Braille or tactile signage, should be installed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia and achieve the minimum design requirements provided under AS1428.

[DUR1695]

53. Pursuant to the provisions of the Disability Discrimination Act, 1992 (Commonwealth) the design of the proposed development shall facilitate access for the disabled in accordance with the relevant provisions of AS1428- Design for Access and Mobility.

[DUR1725]

54. Where the construction work is on or adjacent to public roads, parks or drainage reserves the development shall provide and maintain all warning signs, lights, barriers and fences in accordance with AS 1742 (Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices). The contractor or property owner shall be adequately insured against Public Risk Liability and shall be responsible for any claims arising from these works.

[DUR1795]

55. Any damage caused to public infrastructure (roads, footpaths, water and sewer mains, power and telephone services etc) during construction of the development shall be repaired in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications prior to any use or occupation of the buildings.

[DUR1875]

56. Where existing kerb, footpath or driveway laybacks are to be removed for new driveway laybacks, stormwater connections, pram ramps or for any other reason, the kerb, footpath or driveway laybacks must be sawcut on each side of the work to enable a neat and tidy joint to be constructed

[DUR1905]

57. During construction, a "satisfactory inspection report" is required to be issued by Council for all works required under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. The proponent shall liaise with Councils Engineering Division to arrange a suitable inspection.

[DUR1925]

58. A certificate from a suitably qualified practicing structural engineer shall be submitted to Council and the Principal Certifying Authority within seven days of the site being excavated certifying the adequacy of the sheet piling or other retaining method used to support adjoining properties.

[DUR1965]

59. The developer/contractor is to maintain a copy of the development consent and Construction Certificate approval including plans and specifications on the site at all times.

[DUR2015]

- 60. Swimming Pools (Building)
 - (a) The swimming pool is to be installed and access thereto restricted in accordance with Australian Standard AS

- 1926.1 2012 & AS 1926.3 -2010 & AS 1926.2-2007, the Swimming Pool Act 1992 and the Swimming Pool Regulation 2008.
- (b) Swimming pools shall have suitable means for the drainage and disposal of overflow water.
- (c) The pool pump and filter is to be enclosed and located in a position so as not to cause a noise nuisance to adjoining properties.
- (d) Warning notices are to be provided in accordance with Part 3 of the Swimming Pool Regulations 2008.
- (e) Once your pool or spa is complete please register it at www.swimmingpoolregister.nsw.gov.au.

[DUR2075]

61. Backwash from the swimming pool is to be connected to the sewer in accordance with Australian Standard AS 3500.2 Section 10.9.

[DUR2085]

62. The builder must provide an adequate trade waste service to ensure that all waste material is suitably contained and secured within an area on the site, and removed from the site at regular intervals for the period of construction/demolition to ensure no material is capable of being washed or blown from the site.

[DUR2185]

63. The guttering downpiping and roof waste water disposal system is to be installed and operational before the roofing is installed.

[DUR2245]

64. Regular inspections shall be carried out by the Supervising Engineer on site to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are in place and in good condition both during and after construction.

Additional inspections are also required by the Supervising Engineer after each storm event to assess the adequacy of the erosion control measures, make good any erosion control devices and clean up any sediment that has left the site or is deposited on public land or in waterways.

This inspection program is to be maintained until the maintenance bond is released or until Council is satisfied that the site is fully rehabilitated.

[DUR2375]

65. The site shall not be dewatered, unless written approval to carry out dewatering operations is received from the Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR2425]

- 66. Council is to be given 24 hours notice for any of the following inspections prior to the next stage of construction:
 - (a) internal drainage, prior to slab preparation;
 - (b) water plumbing rough in, and/or stackwork prior to the erection of brick work or any wall sheeting;
 - (c) external drainage prior to backfilling.
 - (d) completion of work and prior to occupation of the building.

[DUR2485]

67. Plumbing

- (a) A plumbing permit is to be obtained from Council prior to commencement of any plumbing and drainage work.
- (b) The whole of the plumbing and drainage work is to be completed in accordance with the requirements of the Plumbing Code of Australia and AS/NZS 3500.

[DUR2495]

68. An isolation cock is to be provided to the water services for each unit in a readily accessible and identifiable position.

[DUR2505]

69. All water plumbing pipes concealed in concrete or masonry walls shall be fully lagged.

[DUR2525]

70. Swimming pool pumps, air conditioning units, heat pump water systems and the like shall be located, installed and operated so as not to be heard in a habitable room of a residence during restricted hours or where it would create offensive noise as defined within the NSW Protection of the Environment Operations (Noise Control) Regulation 2008.

[DUR2835]

71. Construction of the development shall comply with the Waste Management Plan prepared by J.D. Crimmins dated 9/2/15.

[DURNS01]

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

72. Prior to issue of an Occupation Certificate, all works/actions/inspections etc required at that stage by other conditions or approved Management Plans or the like shall be completed in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[POC0005

73. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

74. The building is not to be occupied or a final occupation certificate issued until a fire safety certificate has been issued for the building to the effect that each required essential fire safety measure has been designed and installed in accordance with the relevant standards.

[POC0225]

75. A final occupation certificate must be applied for and obtained within 6 months of any Interim Occupation Certificate being issued, and all conditions of this consent must be satisfied at the time of issue of a final occupation certificate (unless otherwise specified herein).

[POC0355]

76. Section 94 Contributions

Payment of the following contributions pursuant to Section 94 of the Act and the relevant Section 94 Plan.

Prior to the occupation of the building or issue of any Interim or Final Occupation Certificate (whichever comes first), all Section 94 Contributions must have been paid in full and the Certifying Authority must have sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

These charges include indexation provided for in the S94 Plan and will remain fixed for a period of 12 months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in the current version/edition of the relevant Section 94 Plan current at the time of the payment.

A copy of the Section 94 contribution plans may be inspected at the Civic and Cultural Centres, Tumbulgum Road, Murwillumbah and Brett Street, Tweed Heads.

- (a) Tweed Road Contribution Plan:
 5.2 Trips @ \$853 per Trips \$4,436
 (\$815 base rate + \$38 indexation)
 S94 Plan No. 4
 Sector1_4
- (b) Open Space (Casual):
 0.625 ET @ \$549 per ET \$343
 (\$502 base rate + \$47 indexation)
 S94 Plan No. 5
- (c) Open Space (Structured):

	0.625 ET @ \$629 per ET (\$575 base rate + \$54 indexation) S94 Plan No. 5	\$393
(d)	Shirewide Library Facilities: 0.625 ET @ \$847 per ET (\$792 base rate + \$55 indexation) S94 Plan No. 11	\$529
(e)	Bus Shelters: 0.625 ET @ \$64 per ET (\$60 base rate + \$4 indexation) S94 Plan No. 12	\$40
(f)	Eviron Cemetery: 0.625 ET @ \$124 per ET (\$101 base rate + \$23 indexation) S94 Plan No. 13	\$78
(g)	Extensions to Council Administration Offices & Technical Support Facilities 0.625 ET @ \$1880.38 per ET (\$1,759.90 base rate + \$120.48 indexation) S94 Plan No. 18	\$1,175.24
(h)	Cycleways: 0.625 ET @ \$478 per ET (\$447 base rate + \$31 indexation) S94 Plan No. 22	\$299
(i)	Regional Open Space (Casual) 0.625 ET @ \$1103 per ET (\$1,031 base rate + \$72 indexation) S94 Plan No. 26	\$689
(j)	Regional Open Space (Structured): 0.625 ET @ \$3872 per ET (\$3,619 base rate + \$253 indexation) S94 Plan No. 26	\$2,420
(k)	Tweed Heads Master Plan: 2 MDU @ \$1047 per MDU (\$1,047 base rate + \$0 indexation) S94 Plan No. 27	\$2,094
		[POC0395]

77. Prior to the issue of a final occupation certificate adequate proof and/or documentation is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority to identify that all commitment on the BASIX "Schedule of Commitments" have been complied with.

[POC0435]

78. A certificate of compliance (CC) under Sections 305, 306 and 307 of the Water Management Act 2000 is to be obtained from Council to verify that the necessary requirements for the supply of water and sewerage to the development have been made with the Tweed Shire Council.

Prior to the occupation of the building or issue of any Interim or Final Occupation Certificate (whichever comes first), all Section 64 Contributions must have been paid in full and the Certifying Authority must have sighted Council's "Contribution Sheet" and a "Certificate of Compliance" signed by an authorised officer of Council.

Annexed hereto is an information sheet indicating the procedure to follow to obtain a Certificate of Compliance:

Water DSP4: 0.2 ET @ \$12907 per ET \$2,581.40 Sewer Banora: 0.5 ET @ \$6201 per ET \$3,100.50

These charges to remain fixed for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this consent and thereafter in accordance with the rates applicable in Council's adopted Fees and Charges current at the time of payment.

A CURRENT COPY OF THE CONTRIBUTION FEE SHEET ATTACHED TO THIS CONSENT <u>MUST</u> BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT.

Note: The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended) makes no provision for works under the Water Management Act 2000 to be certified by an Accredited Certifier.

79. Prior to the issue of an occupation certificate, the applicant shall produce a copy of the "satisfactory inspection report" issued by Council for all works required under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

[POC0745]

- 80. Redundant road pavement, kerb and gutter or foot paving including any existing disused vehicular laybacks/driveways or other special provisions shall be removed and the area reinstated to match adjoining works in accordance with Councils Development Design and Construction Specifications.
 - [POC0755]
- 81. On completion of work a certificate signed by a practising structural engineer is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority to certify the structural adequacy of the structure.

[POC0805]

82. Upon completion of the pool the builder is to submit to the Principal Certifying Authority a certificate stating that the "Water Recirculation System" has been installed in accordance with AS 1926.3-2010.

[POC0905]

83. Prior to the occupation or use of any building and prior to the issue of any occupation certificate, including an interim occupation certificate a final inspection report is to be obtained from Council in relation to the plumbing and drainage works.

[POC1045]

84. Prior to the issue of a final occupation certificate, all conditions of consent are to be met.

[POC1055]

85. Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, a certificate of practical completion shall be obtained from Council's General Manager or his delegate for all works required under Section 68 of the Local Government Act.

[POCNS01]

USE

86. The use to be conducted so as not to cause disruption to the amenity of the locality, particularly by way of the emission of noise, dust and odours or the like.

[USE0125]

87. All externally mounted air conditioning units and other mechanical plant or equipment are to be located so that any noise impact due to their operation which may be or is likely to be experienced by any neighbouring premises is minimised. Notwithstanding this requirement all air conditioning units and other mechanical plant and or equipment is to be acoustically treated or shielded where considered necessary to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate such that the operation of any air conditioning unit, mechanical plant and or equipment does not result in the emission of offensive or intrusive noise.

[USE0175]

88. All externally mounted artificial lighting, including security lighting, is to be shielded to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate where necessary or required so as to prevent the spill of light or glare creating a nuisance to neighbouring or adjacent premises.

[USE0225]

89. The premises shall be suitably identified by Unit No. (where appropriate) and Street Number displayed in a prominent position on the facade of the building facing the primary street

frontage, and is to be of sufficient size to be clearly identifiable from the street.

[USE0435]

90. All landscaping work is to be completed in accordance with the approved plans prior to any use or occupation of the building.

IUSE07351

91. Operation of the development shall comply with the Waste Management Plan prepared by J.D. Crimmins dated 9/2/15.

[USENS01]

[PR-PC] Interpretation of the Tweed Development Control Plan Section B11 Seaside City and Tweed Local Environmental Plan 2014 in Regard to Four Development Applications DA15/0079, DA15/0080, DA15/0081 and DA15/0082, Cylinders Drive, Kingscliff

RECOMMENDED that:

- The submitted development applications for small lot housing are supported in principle, subject to the satisfaction of technical matters raised by Council staff in the information requests relevant to each application.
- 2. The proponent does not have to provide detailed dwelling house plans attached to each lot as a formal part of the subject applications.
- 3. The proponent fund an amendment to the Development Control Plan consistent with the proposed development applications and that this be processed concurrent with the submitted development applications.
- 4. The proposals and amended Development Control Plan be reported back to Council for determination at the appropriate time.

3 [PR-PC] Rural Land Strategy - Stage 3 Options Paper - Public Exhibition

RECOMMENDED that:

- 1. The Tweed Shire Rural Lands Strategy Stage 3 Options Paper prepared by GHD Pty Ltd, on behalf of Council, be placed on public exhibition for a period of 60 days;
- 2. Four community information sessions be conducted during the public exhibition of the Options Paper;
- 3. Once all submissions and feedback are received, within 30 days post exhibition, an assessment of the implications of proposed options will be finalised and a draft Rural Land Strategy be prepared in Stage 4, and submitted to Council for further consideration.

4 [PR-PC] PP11/0005 Club Banora, Leisure Drive, Banora Point - Development Control Plan

RECOMMENDED that:

- In accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 clause 18, draft Tweed Development Control Plan Section B28 - Club Banora be placed on public exhibition for a period of not less than 42 days, and
- 2. Following public exhibition a further report responding to all submissions is to be presented to Council.
- 3. Council engages with the Banora Point Residents Association by providing a Council officer to attend one of their meeting to explain the Development Control Plan.
- 5 [PR-PC] Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 Development Standards

RECOMMENDED that Council notes the May 2015 Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 - Development Standards.

MAYORAL MINUTE

A1 [MM-CM] Murwillumbah Hospital Birthing Unit

305

Cr G Bagnall

RESOLVED that Council endorses the Mayor to write, on behalf of the Tweed Shire Council, to the Minister for Health, the Hon. Jillian Skinner MP and to the Member for Lismore, Mr Thomas George MP, stressing our local community's disappointment in the recent closing of the birthing unit at Murwillumbah Hospital and request that the service be reinstated immediately.

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Unanimous ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr M Armstrong

ORDERS OF THE DAY

LATE ITEM

306

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

RESOLVED that Item B1 being an Addendum item be dealt with and it be ruled by the Chairman to be of great urgency.

Page 24

FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr G Bagnall AGAINST VOTE - Cr C Byrne, Cr W Polglase, Cr P Youngblutt ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr M Armstrong

The Motion was **Carried** on the Casting Vote of the Mayor.

B1 [NOM] Trans Pacific Partnership Trade Agreement

307

Cr K Milne Cr B Longland

RESOLVED that Council to:

- 1. Call on the Commonwealth Trade Minister to release the draft Trans Pacific Partnership (TPP) agreement for public consultation and parliamentary consideration prior to it being agreed to by Cabinet.
- 2. Request that the Trade Minister ensure that the TPP agreement does not contain provisions which:
 - a) Enable a foreign investor to sue governments for damages over policy, laws or regulations at the local government level.
 - b) Restrict local government policies which encourage local employment, support local economic and industry development and encourage good employment practices and initiatives.
 - c) Restrict local government policies which encourage good environmental practices and initiatives.
 - d) Restrict local government supply and regulation of services or require the commercialisation of services.
 - e) Prevent local government procurement policy from giving preference to local suppliers.
- 3. Authorise Council's delegates to the ALGA conference 2015 to support motions that are tabled at that conference that propose similar actions as outlined in points 1 and 2.
- 4. Send this resolution as a submission to the Commonwealth Trade Minister.

FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr G Bagnall AGAINST VOTE - Cr C Byrne, Cr W Polglase, Cr P Youngblutt ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr M Armstrong

The Motion was **Carried** on the Casting Vote of the Mayor.

There being no further business the Meeting terminated at 5.52pm.



Minutes of Meeting Confirmed by Council at the

Council Meeting held on xxx

Chairman